
 

  

                                                  Town Planning Commission Regular Meeting   
Tuesday, June 18th, 2024 – 7:00PM 

Town Hall/Virtual 

4030 95th Ave NE. Yarrow Point, WA. 98004 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Commission Chairperson: Carl Hellings 

Commissioners: Chuck Hirsch, David Feller, Jeffrey Shiu, and Lee Sims 

Town Planner: Aleksandr Romanenko - SBN Planning 

Town Attorney: Emily Romanenko – OMW 

Clerk - Treasurer: Bonnie Ritter  

Deputy Clerk: Austen Wilcox 

Meeting Participation 

Members of the public may participate in person at Town Hall or by phone/online. Individuals wishing to call 

in remotely who wish to speak live should register their request with the Deputy Clerk at 425-454-6994 or email 

depclerk@yarrowpointwa.gov and leave a message before 3:30 PM on the day of the Commission meeting. Wait 

for the Deputy Clerk to call on you before making your comment. If you dial in via telephone, please unmute 

yourself by dialing *6 when you are called on to speak. Speakers will be allotted 3 minutes for comments. Please 

state your name (and address if you wish.) You will be asked to stop when you reach the 3-minute limit. 
commission members will not respond directly at the meeting or have a back-and-forth exchange with the public, 

but they may ask staff to research and report back on an issue. 

Join on computer, mobile app, or phone 
1-253-215-8782 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86804543081  

Meeting ID: 868 0454 3081 # 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Commission Chairperson, Carl Hellings 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL: Commissioners, Chuck Hirsch, David Feller, Jeffrey Shiu, Lee Sims 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

February 2024, Regular Planning Commission Meeting 

6. STAFF REPORTS 

6.1 SR Tree Code     - (5 min) 

6.2 SR Middle Housing     - (5 min) 

6.3 SR SB5290 Consolidated Permit Review  - (5 min) 

6.4 SR Comprehensive Plan    - (5 min) 

6.5 SR Climate Planning    - (5 min) 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may speak concerning items that either are or are not on the agenda. The 

Planning Commission takes these matters under advisement. Please state your name (and address if 

you wish) and limit comments to 3 minutes. If you call in via telephone, please unmute yourself by 

dialing *6 when it is your turn to speak. Comments via email may be submitted to 

depclerk@yarrowpointwa.gov or regular mail to: Town of Yarrow Point, 4030 95th Ave NE, Yarrow 

Point, WA 98004. 

8. REGULAR BUSINESS  

8.1 Wang - Anderson Short Plat 2024-01: 4015 95th Ave NE.   -  (10 min)    

9. PUBLIC COMMENT 

10. ADJOURNMENT  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86804543081
mailto:depclerk@yarrowpointwa.gov


 

Page 1 of 2 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting              May 21, 2024 

TOWN OF YARROW POINT 
TOWN PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

May 21, 2024 
7:00 p.m. 

 
The Town Planning Commission of the Town of Yarrow Point, Washington met in regular session on 
Tuesday, May 21, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of Town Hall. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PRESENT: Chair Carl Hellings (absent), Commissioners, Jeffrey Shiu 
(absent), Chuck Hirsch, David Feller, and Lee Sims 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Deputy Clerk Austen Wilcox, and Planner Aleksandr Romanenko 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
Substitute Chair Chuck Hirsch called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 

    
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sims, seconded by Commissioner Feller. 
to approve the agenda as presented.  
VOTE: 3 for, 0 against. Motion carried. 
 
5. OPEN PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT TRAINING FROM TOWN ATTORNEY 
Town Attorney Emily Romanenko provided a presentation on the Open Public Meetings Act to the Planning 
Commission and Park Board members in attendance. 
 
6. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

• April 16, 2024 Regular Meeting 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Feller, seconded by Commissioner Sims 
to approve the April 16, 2024 special meeting minutes as amended.  
VOTE:  3 for, 0 against. Motion carried. 
 

• April 24, 2024 Special Meeting 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Feller, seconded by Commissioner Sims 
to approve the April 24, 2024 special meeting minutes as amended.  
VOTE:  3 for, 0 against. Motion carried. 
 
7. STAFF REPORTS 
Middle Housing – HB 1110 Integration: 
Planner Romanenko discussed Council’s request for two public engagement open house 
type meetings. One before administering the survey to help inform the public, and one after to discuss 
outcomes. Staff was also directed to develop a preliminary budget for the integration of the new middle 
housing legislative requirements. 
 
The Town has published a middle housing webpage to help residents navigate the requirements and 
implications of the middle housing legislation. Additional information will be provided on the Town’s 
webpage as it is developed. The survey along with visualizations will be posted on the website and 
presented at the May 29th open house. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed. 



 

Page 2 of 2 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting              May 21, 2024 

 
The Planning Commission requests a memo from the Mayor regarding the position of nearby jurisdictions’ 
direction on HB 1110 Integration. 
 
8. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Meredith Shank is very opposed to increased housing on lots in Yarrow Point. She shared safety concerns 
regarding traffic and parking. 
 
Steve Scalzo discussed the current draft tree code, middle housing, and open public meeting procedures.  
 
9. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
9.1 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
Planner Romanenko discussed the draft of the Comprehensive Plan for recommendation to the Town 
Council. 
 
The comprehensive plan update process began in September of 2022. The Town planners have worked 
with the planning commission and council over the past 20 months to update the Town’s comprehensive 
plan. All draft chapters have been reviewed at past meetings as text, and subsequently with graphics and 
maps.  
 
Commissioners discussed and shared their personal views on middle housing as addressed within the 
Comprehensive Plan 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Feller, seconded by Commissioner Sims to forward the draft 
Comprehensive Plan to the Town Council with considerations for changes for language in the Land Use 
Chapter regarding Middle Housing, affordability and to ask the Town Council to have a joint meeting to 
discuss issues and vision with regards to the Land Use Chapter. 
VOTE: 3 for, 0 against. Motion carried. 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT: 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sims, seconded by Commissioner Feller to adjourn the meeting at 9:46 
p.m.  
VOTE: 3 for, 0 against. Motion carried. 
 
 
        ___________________________ 
              Chuck Hirsch, Substitute Chair 
_________________________________ 
Attest: Austen Wilcox, Deputy Clerk 
 



Business of The Town Planning Commission Staff Report 6.1
Town of Yarrow Point, WA June 18, 2024

Tree Code STAFF REPORT

Presented by: Town Planner

Exhibits: None

Background:
As a result of recent development activities in the Town a number of community members have
brought to the attention of staff and elected officials that our current tree code does not protect
trees in a manner which those residents would like.
Summary:
At the October special joint meeting of the Town Council and Planning Commission it was
decided that the private property tree code should be reviewed and updated to better balance tree
protections and property rights, and to address technical and administrative issues in the code.

In November, the Planning Commission discussed approaches for updating the code. Staff met
and discussed the administrative and technical update elements. A schedule and draft
administrative work plan outline was created . A tree protections matrix was drafted to help
provide structure in determining which variables to adjust as part of the tree code update process.

At the December Planning Commission meeting a list of proposed changes to tree protections
was discussed. Staff along with the Commission chair were directed to bring the proposed
changes to council to get direction on whether the proposal addressed Council’s concerns.

At the January Council meeting the “Tree Protections Proposal Matrix” was discussed and a set
of recommendations was made by Council. The matrix was updated to reflect those
recommendations. At the January Planning Commission meeting staff was directed to write an
updated draft private property tree code.

At the February Planning Commission meeting staff presented a draft code. Staff was directed to
update the code to include more details for alternative designs, along with detailed edits to
various code sections.

Page 1 of 2



In March the Council held an Open House where residents gave a range of comments on the tree
code. The Council, after hearing this feedback, gave direction to the planning commission and
staff to consider additional elements and give feedback and recommendations to council on those
topics.

During the March Planning Commission meeting the direction from council and feedback from
residents was discussed.

At the regular April Planning Commission meeting, the draft code was discussed and reviewed
line by line. The commission directed staff to integrate edits and prepare an updated draft code
ahead of the April 26th special meeting

The Planning Commission held a special meeting on April 26th to review the updated draft of
the private property tree code. The code was recommended to Council as presented.

The draft presented to Council at the May meeting was a strike and delete draft. Council directed
staff to consolidate some of the code language and to bring back updates on several
administrative elements of the code. The details of which are listed in long form as part of the
June council agenda bill for the tree code update.

During the June Council meeting staff presented formatting changes, comments from the Town
arborist, and an incorporated reference to federal eagle take permit requirements,
Councilmembers Lagerholm and Hyman presented draft incentives for discussion. Staff was
directed to make additional changes to reflect the arborists comments and to propose approaches
to implement some of the presented draft incentives.

Action Items
● Staff Presentation (5 min)

Page 2 of 2



Business of The Town Planning Commission Staff Report 6.2
Town of Yarrow Point, WA June 18, 2024

Middle Housing (HB1110 Integration) STAFF REPORT

Presented by: Town Planner

Exhibits: Middle Housing Informational Posters

Summary:
At the regular April Town Council meeting, staff presented the gap analysis and public engagement plan.
Council approved the engagement plan with amendments to include two public engagement open house
type meetings. One before administering the survey to help inform the public, and one after to discuss
outcomes. Staff was also directed to develop a preliminary budget for the integration of the new middle
housing legislative requirements. The preliminary budget estimate is $160,000 on the high end, with a
low end budget estimate of $45,000. A portion of the budget is offset by a $35,000 grant which was
awarded to Yarrow Point for middle housing regulation update work.

The Town has published a middle housing webpage to help residents navigate the requirements and
implications of the middle housing legislation. Additional information will be provided on the Town’s
webpage as it is developed. The informational open house was held on May 29th from 6-8pm at Town
Hall. The survey was launched during the open house and flyers with the Town’s middle housing
webpage and survey were posted on all town mailbox pagodas, emailed to the Town mailing list, and
posted on Town social media. 35 survey responses have been received as of 6-13-24. Town staff will
continue to reach out to residents to encourage participation in the survey and public process.

Staff prepared several informational posters which were on display at the open house. These posters have
been included with your packet in their digital form. Staff is continuing to compile a list of frequently
asked questions which can be posted on the Town’s Middle Housing webpage to help inform residents.

At the June council meeting, staff presented an update following the open house, and was directed to
create a work plan which outlines the next steps for the Town to address the requirements of Middle
Housing.

Resources
● Yarrow Point Middle Housing Survey: https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/NVVHMLG
● Yarrow Point Middle Housing Website : https://yarrowpointwa.gov/middle-housing/
● WA Department of Commerce Middle Housing Website

Action Items
● Staff Presentation (5 min)

Page 1 of 1

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/NVVHMLG
https://yarrowpointwa.gov/middle-housing/
https://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/growth-management-topics/planning-for-middle-housing/


What is middle housing?
In Yarrow Point Middle Housing must include the authorization of duplexes, 
cottage houses, and courtyard apartments. The broader statewide definition 
includes housing types that have between two and eight units.

WHAT IS MIDDLE 
HOUSING?

FOR MORE INFORMATION GO TO: 
https://yarrowpointwa.gov/middle-housing/

Is middle housing affordable housing?
No, middle housing does not necessarily imply a focus on affordability and 
instead refers to the size and number of units, not the cost to rent or own.

01

02

How will middle housing units impact the character of Yarrow Point?
Middle housing development may increase the density of housing in Yarrow 
Point over time as more owners choose to develop two units and subdivide 
larger properties. 

How will the Town regulate middle housing?
Middle housing units will be subject to the same development regulations as 
single-family homes. The Town’s setbacks, height limits, and lot coverage 
areas will remain the same.

03

04

Does lot size impact how many units can be built?
No, up to two units must be allowed on all residential lots (many regulation to 
remain unchanged as mentioned above). Structures may cover up to 30%.05

How can I get involved?
Please take the Town’s middle housing survey which is available on the 
Town’s website which is listed below. We also encourage residents to 
comment at public meetings and to attend open house events held at Town Hall.

06



Why is Yarrow Point developing middle housing regulations?
The Town is required to allow for middle housing under HB 1110 which aims 
to address statewide housing deficits by requiring jurisdictions to allow new 
middle housing units.

Why
Middle Housing?

FOR MORE INFORMATION GO TO: 
https://yarrowpointwa.gov/middle-housing/

How will middle housing requirements affect the density of Yarrow 
Point?
Yarrow Point is categorized as a “tier 3” jurisdiction and is required to allow 
at least two units on all lots zoned primarily for residential uses.

01

02

Will the middle housing regulations affect existing single-family 
housing?
Single-family detached dwellings will remain an allowable use. Middle 
housing units will become an additional option for development.

How will the work to adopt these required regulations be funded?
The development and implementation of middle housing policies and 
regulations will be partially funded by a $35,000 state issued grant. The 
remainder will be funded by the Town’s general fund.

03

04

Who builds middle housing?
Middle housing can be built by residents and developers on their private 
property. The Town does not build housing.

What is the timeline for implementing middle housing regulations?
Middle housing regulations and planning policies must be implemented by 
June 30, 2025.

05

06



MIDDLE 
HOUSING
UPDATE

EXISTING: ADU/DADU

Impervious

Surface

Street

Private 

Property

Driveway

200 ft
100 ft

CURRENT YARROW POINT 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS
Example Lot:

Allowable Structure Area:

Allowable Impervious Surface:

Setbacks - Private Property:

Setbacks - Right of Way (Street):

Height Limit:

Parking Space Requirements 

Single Family Home

ADU/DADU

20,000 sf Lot

6,000 sf (30%)

12,000 sf (60%)

10 ft

25 ft

25 ft

4 Spaces

2 Spaces

HB 1110
● Middle housing on all residential lots.
● Two units per lot
● Only administrative design review of 

objective standards
● 2 Parking spots per unit

HB 1337
● Allow separate sale and ownership of 

ADUs.
● Parking regulations unchanged for lots 

over 6000 sf
● 1000 SF must be allowed

● Total Structure Area 30%
● Total Impervious Area 60%
● Attached OR Detached
● Shall not exceed 6% of Lot Area; not less 

than 250 sf and not more than 850 sf
● Entrance may not face street
● Parking: Single Family Home 4 Spaces
● ADU/DADU 2 Spaces

Street
Private Property

Driveway

25 ft

10 ft

Attached OR
Detached 
(850 sf)

SBN Planning 
May, 2024

During the 2023 state legislative session housing bills were passed and signed into 
law which apply to the Town of Yarrow Point and require that the Town implement a 
range of changes to its development regulations.



Street
Private Property

Driveway

NEW: ADU/DADU

DUPLEX

COURTYARD 
APARTMENTS

COTTAGE HOUSES

MIDDLE 
HOUSING 
OPTIONS

Street
Private Property

Driveway

Street
Private Property

Driveway

Street
Private Property

Driveway

● Total Structure Area Remains 30%
● Total Impervious Area Remains 60%
● Attached OR Detached
● Accessory Limit Now 1,000 sf
● Height Limits Remains 25 ft
● Parking: Single Family Home 4 Spaces
● ADU/DADU 2 Spaces
● No directional entry requirements

● Total Structure Area Remains 30%
● Total Impervious Area Remains 60%
● Side-by-Side OR Stacked
● Separate Entrances
● Height Limits Remains 25 ft
● Parking: 2 Spaces Per Unit

● Total Structure Area Remains 30%
● Total Impervious Area Remains 60%
● Separate Entrances
● Two attached units: shared courtyard
● Height Limits Remains 25 ft
● Parking: 2 Spaces Per Unit

● Total Structure Area Remains 30%
● Total Impervious Area Remains 60%
● Two Separate Structures
● 20% Shared Open Space
● Height Limits Remains 25 ft
● Parking: 2 Spaces Per Unit

Unit Separation 
Example 
(No set unit size)

Side-by-Side
OR Stacked

Attached OR
Detached 
(1000 SF)

SBN Planning 
May, 2024



Business of The Town Planning Commission Staff Report 6.3
Town of Yarrow Point, WA June 18, 2024

SB5290 - Consolidated Permit Review STAFF REPORT

Presented by: Town Planner

Exhibits: None

Summary:
During the 2023 State Legislative Session SB5290 was passed. This bill requires that
jurisdictions throughout the state update their permit processing timeframes and requires
consolidated permit review. The bill also creates two grant programs.

The first is to consolidate permit reviews and to ensure that the new timeframes can be met. Staff
applied for and received $187,500. These funds may be used to update the Towns permitting
process and Code to make the review process more streamlined and timely. The grant also
requires that the Town provide quarterly reports about the permitting process and timeline during
the grant period. The Town has historically met state timeline requirements for permit issuance,
and staff anticipates being able to meet the new state requirements. The funding will help update
the Town’s Municipal code, permitting process, and forms.

The second grant is for the digitization and reworking of permit systems. The Town currently has
a partly digitized system which has opportunities for improvement. When the second grant
becomes available Town staff will work with the Mayor and Council to determine if applying for
the grant would be in the Town’s interest.

Because the Town will be working through a range of code updates as a result of many pieces of
legislation, the components which involve permitting and the associated administrative work can
be in part funded by the grant money associated with this legislation. The work associated with
the first grant will begin in July of 2024, and conclude at the end of June 2025.

Resources
● Local Project Review - Commerce Webpage:

https://www.commerce.wa.gov/program-index/local-project-review-program/

Action Items
● Staff Presentation (5 min)

Page 1 of 1

https://www.commerce.wa.gov/program-index/local-project-review-program/


Comprehensive Plan Update STAFF REPORT

Presented by: Town Planner

Exhibits: None

Background:
The Comprehensive Plan of Yarrow Point is a strategic policy framework that guides the
community's future growth and development. The plan outlines how the town will handle
population growth, environmental factors, and ensure essential services and facilities are
provided to meet the community's needs for the next 20 years. The update is a mandatory process
which occurs every 10 years.
For a more detailed overview please visit: https://yarrowpointwa.gov/comprehensive-plan/

Summary:
At this June meeting a full draft of the Comprehensive Plan was provided to the Council. The
draft was recommended by the Planning Commission for review BUT with several concerns.
The commission directed staff to convey to council that chapter 2 (Land Use) and Chapter 3
(Housing) contain required provisions and language pertaining to housing affordability and
density which the commission does not believe align with the Towns vision or community
values. The commission requested that the council consider a joint meeting to discuss these
concerns.

The Council voted to have a Joint meeting with the Planning Commission at the regular July
Council Meeting on July 9th at 4pm.

Staff was directed to work with Councilmember Porter on specific revisions to the
comprehensive plan related to citations, clarifications, and graphics accessibility updates.

Council directed staff to create a draft implementation plan and budget for items in the
comprehensive plan which the Town is required to update in its regulations.

Action Items
● Staff Presentation (5 min)

Page 1 of 1

Business of The Town Planning Commission Staff Report 6.4
Town of Yarrow Point, WA June 18, 2024

https://yarrowpointwa.gov/comprehensive-plan/


Business of The Town Planning Commission Staff Report 6.5
Town of Yarrow Point, WA June 18, 2024

Climate Planning STAFF REPORT

Presented by: Town Planner

Exhibits: None

Summary:

The State Legislature passed house bill 1181, the so-called Climate bill. Yarrow Point is required
by RCW 36.70A.130(5) to revise its comprehensive plan and development regulations by June
30, 2029, to ensure they comply with the Growth Management Act (GMA) as revised by House
Bill 1181 (Chapter 228, Laws of 2023).

The Department of commerce is administering a grant program to aid jurisdictions in planning
for and adopting the requirements of HB1181. The available grant funding for the Town is
$100,000. While the deadline for full integration is June 30, 2029, the Town may begin its
climate planning process as early as July 1, 2023.

Town Council directed staff to apply for the proposed grant at the November 2023 regular
meeting. On March 15th of 2024, COM confirmed the Town would be awarded funding during
this biennium.

The work plan for climate planning will be developed and brought to council at the July meeting
for review and direction. Staff anticipates working with the council, mayor, and both
commissions to create a Climate Policy Advisory Team in the fall of 2024. Following the
creation of the Climate Policy Advisory Team the grant scope through June 2025 is to engage
and inform the public about the requirements of climate resilience planning, and to create a
climate impacts assessment report which will be sent to the department of commerce.

Resources
● WA Department of Commerce: HB1181 FAQ
● WA Department of Commerce: Climate Change Website

Action Items
● Staff Presentation (5 min)

Page 1 of 1

https://deptofcommerce.app.box.com/s/esl8t7fb19iqntjz8ax7havsm7rihnfh
https://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/growth-management-topics/climate-change/


Business of The Planning Commission 8.1 
Town of Yarrow Point, WA June 18, 2024 
 
        
WANG – ANDERSON SHORT PLAT 
SP 2024-01: 4015 95th Ave NE. 

Proposed Planning Commission 
Action:  
Recommendation of Approval w/ 
Conditions 

 

Presented by:  Town Engineer 

Exhibits: Staff Report date June 11, 2024 
Wang-Anderson Preliminary Plat Civil Drawings 
Wang – Anderson Final Short Plat Draft 

Summary: 

The Town of Yarrow Point received a short plat application from Dennis and Jan Buchanan for 
their property at 4015 95th Ave NE on March 25, 2024, following a pre-application meeting held 
the previous month.   

The short plat application was reviewed and deemed complete by the town planner on April 17, 
2024, and subsequently reviewed by the Town Engineer.  In accordance with the Yarrow Point 
Municipal Code, the project proposal was scheduled for the next public meeting before the 
planning commission.   

 

Recommended Action: 

At the public meeting, the planning commission will review the proposal, discuss the 
recommended approval conditions provided by town staff, and forward a recommendation of 
approval, conditional approval, or denial of the project to the town council.  



 

Short Plat No. 24-01: 4015 95th Ave NE                                                                                    Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 

4030 - 95th Avenue NE 
Yarrow Point, WA  98004 

Ph:(425) 454-6994   Fax:(425) 454-7899 

 
 
Prepared For: Yarrow Point Planning Commission 

By: Stacia Schroeder, PE 

Town Engineer 

Date: June 11, 2024 

Re:  Short Plat (SP) No. 2024-01  
 4015 95th Ave NE – Dennis & Jan Buchanan 

 
 

The Town of Yarrow Point received a short plat application from Dennis and Jan 
Buchanan for their property at 4015 95th Ave NE on March 25, 2024, following a pre-
application meeting held the previous month.   

The short plat application was reviewed and deemed complete by the town planner on 
April 17, 2024, and in accordance with the Yarrow Point Municipal Code, the project 
proposal was scheduled for the next public meeting before the planning commission.  At 
the public meeting, the planning commission will review the proposal, discuss the 
recommended approval conditions provided by town staff, and forward a 
recommendation of approval, conditional approval, or denial of the project to the town 
council.  

Upon receipt of a recommendation from the planning commission, the town council shall 
then, at its next regularly scheduled meeting, hold an open record public hearing to 
accept public testimony and take one of the following actions: approve the application, 
conditionally approve the application, continue the hearing, or deny the application. 

Discussion: 

The Buchanan’s currently own one town parcel (43,570 square feet) located at the 
northwest corner of the intersection of NE 40th Street and 95th Avenue NE.  By way of 
a short plat, they are requesting to split the lot into two separate single-family 
residential parcels.  As proposed, Lot 1 (north lot) will be 24,315 square feet.  It will be 
afforded access to the town’s road network via a new driveway installed on 95th 
Avenue NE, directly across from the town hall entrance.  Lot 2 (24,255 square feet) 
will install a new driveway in generally the same location on NE 40th Street.  Although 



 

Short Plat No. 24-01: 4015 95th Ave NE                                                                                    Page 2 of 4 

 

Lots 1 and 2 will attempt to reuse existing dry and wet utility service lines, new service 
lines will be stubbed from already existing main lines in the public right-of-way.  
Additional items reviewed by town staff include:  

• Temporary erosion control and tree protection plan; 

• Coordination with the town’s undergrounding and stormwater improvement 
project;  

• Removing all encroachments as defined in YPMC 12.24 from the town right-
of-way; and 

• Conformance with the YPMC Title 16 – Subdivisions and Title 17 – Zoning. 

Findings: 

The proposal submitted by Dennis and Jan Buchanan is a request to short plat the 
parcel at 4015 95th Ave NE (KC Parcel No.’s 9808700565) into two lots. Following are 
staff’s findings related to SP No. 24-01: 

 

1.) A Pre-Application Conference between the applicant and Town staff took place 
on February 15, 2024. 

2.) A Short Plat Application, including the applicable fee, was submitted to the Town 
on March 25, 2024 (YPMC 16.04.070 and Resolution 346). 

3.) All preliminary short subdivision requirements were met (YPMC 16.28.040(B), 
16.12, and 16.20) including: 

a. Meet all applicable design requirements in YPMC 16.16 including: 

i. Lot Design (YPMC 16.16.040) 

b. Meet all applicable improvements in YPMC 16.20 including: 

i. Water service connection for each lot (YPMC 16.20.040) 

ii. Sewer service connection for each lot (YPMC 16.20.050) 

iii. Storm service connection for each lot (YPMC 16.20.060) 

iv. Two new lot corners created shall be staked (YPMC 16.20.080) 

v. Installation of improvements (YPMC 16.20.090) 

c. Meet all requirements in the YPMC 16.24 Final Plat Requirements: 

4.) The application as submitted complies with the YPMC Title 17 – Zoning. 

a. YPMC 17.12.025 – Primary Uses.  Each new lot will have one single-



 

Short Plat No. 24-01: 4015 95th Ave NE                                                                                    Page 3 of 4 

 

family dwelling unit. 

b. YPMC 17.16.010(A) – Lot Area. Each of the two lots will exceed the 
minimum lot size (12,000 sf) for R-12 zoning. 

c. YPMC 17.16.040 – Setback Requirements. 

i. All non-conformities that are a direct result of the short plat 
must be removed as a condition of final plat approval. 

ii. All proposed setback lines conform to the zoning code. 

d. YPMC 17.16.050 – Building Site Requirements. 

i. The building sites have direct access to a public street. 

ii. Both proposed lots meet the area requirement of YPMC 
17.16.010.  

5.) Sanitary sewer, water, storm, and power main lines are available in the 
adjacent public right-of-way.  Service stubs (either existing or new) must be 
provided to each parcel prior to final plat approval (YPMC 16.12.030(F)(8) and 
16.20.090). 

7.) An Availability of Water Service from the City of Bellevue was received for the 
additional building lot (YPMC 16.12.030(G)). 

8.) An Availability of Sanitary Sewer Service from the City of Bellevue was received 
for the additional building lot (YPMC 16.12.030(H)). 

9.) Prior to receiving final approval for the short plat the applicant must complete 
all the necessary improvements, or provide the Town with a construction bond 
or set-aside account, all in accordance with Section 16.20.090. 

10.) Installation of a mailbox on the existing town pagoda is required prior to final 
short plat approval.  The shall conform to town standards and my require 
extensive modifications to the existing structure, including but not limited to an 
entirely new pagoda (YPMC 12.31.010).  

 
Recommendation: 

Short Plat (SP) No. 24-01 meets all the requirements of the YPMC, Titles 16 and 17. 
Based on all materials submitted, staff recommends approval with the following 
conditions: 

 

1) The applicant shall remove all non-conformities that are created by the short 
plat, including but not limited to, removal of the primary residence prior to 
short plat approval or as otherwise addressed according to YPMC 16.20.090. 

2) The applicant shall remove all encroachments (as defined in YPMC 12.24) 
from the right-of-way prior to final plat approval. 



 

Short Plat No. 24-01: 4015 95th Ave NE                                                                                    Page 4 of 4 

 

3) Individual utility service stubs for stormwater, sanitary sewer, water, and 
power for each lot as shown on the preliminary plat are installed or otherwise 
addressed according to YPMC 16.20.090. 

4) The applicant shall identify existing property corners and where applicable, 
install new property corners prior to final approval. 

5) The applicant shall be responsible for creating a final short plat which meets 
the requirements in the YPMC Chapter 16.24.  NOTE: Mylar is no longer 
accepted by the King County Recorder’s Office. 

6) The original of the final short plat shall be submitted by the developer to the 
town and thereafter the town will file for record with the King County 
department of records and elections. One copy shall be retained by the town. 
One copy shall be furnished to the town staff. NOTE: The applicant is 
responsible for all fees incurred by the Town of Yarrow Point to file the final 
plat. 

 



520

0
GRAPHIC SCALE
10 20 40

1 INCH = 20 FT.

Short Plat 2024-01

DepClerk
Received



0
GRAPHIC SCALE
10 20 40

1 INCH = 20 FT.

05/07/24

Engineer
Highlight

Engineer
Highlight

Engineer
Callout
MITIGATION TREE #1 - EXISTING 16.2" CEDAR (TREE #20) TO BE RETAINED AS PART OF TREE 2023-09

Engineer
Callout
MITIGATION TREE #2 - EXISTING 12" FIR (TREE #29) TO BE RETAINED AS PART OF TREE 2023-09

Engineer
Callout
UPDATE TABLE TO INCLUDE MITIGATION TREES TO REMAIN (AS PERMITTED).



SD

SD

SDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSD

0
GRAPHIC SCALE
10 20 40

1 INCH = 20 FT.



05/07/24

Short Plat-2024-01

DepClerk
Received



0
GRAPHIC SCALE
15' 30' 60'

1 INCH = 30 FT.

05/07/24


	AGENDA
	COMPLETE PACKET
	COMPLETE PACKET
	May 21, 2024 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes
	7:00 p.m.
	___________________________
	Chuck Hirsch, Substitute Chair
	_________________________________
	Attest: Austen Wilcox, Deputy Clerk

	6.1 SR- Tree Code June 2024
	6.2 SR - Middle Housing June 2024
	Middle Housing Posters
	24x36 Middle Housing FAQ Posters.pdf
	24x36 Middle Housing Diagrams.pdf

	6.3 SR- SB5290 - Consolidated Permit Review June 2024
	6.4 SR Comprehensive Plan Update June 2024
	6.5 SR- Climate Planning June 2024

	AB 8.1 - Wang - Anderson Short Plat 2024-01
	COMPLETE PACKET
	20240611_TYP_Wang SP 24-01 Engr Report PC
	20240508_4015 95th Ave NE_Prelim Short Plat Civil Plans 2R
	20240508_4015 95th Ave NE_Short Plat Map 2R



